
CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 1



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 2



City of Grand Prairie Police and Fire Civil Service Commission Minutes 

 

Date: August 28, 2020 

 

Location: City Hall, Council Chambers, 300 Main Street, Grand Prairie, TX 75050 

 

Jerry King called the meeting to order at 8:35 a.m. with Commissioner Reg Crump present. Also present 

were Lisa Norris, Civil Service Director, Tasha Velasco, Human Resources Manager, Beatriz Juarez, 

Human Resources Specialist, Tiffany Bull, Assistant City Attorney, Daniel Scesney, Police Chief, and 

Christy Martinez, Assistant Police Chief. 

 

The second item on the agenda was to approve the minutes from the Civil Service Commission held on 

June 16, 2020.  Reg Crump moved to approve the minutes as written and Jerry King seconded the motion. 

The motion passed unanimously.  

 

Item three on the agenda was to consider changes to the City of Grand Prairie Police Officers and Fire 

Fighters Local Civil Service Rules and Regulations.  Ms. Norris indicated there were numerous changes to 

the rules at the request of the Police Department.  She indicated that the agenda packet contained a summary 

of the rule changes, a full red-lined set of rules and a clean set of rules, assuming they would be approved.  

Ms. Norris indicated she would walk through the summary with the Commission and respond to any 

questions as needed. 

 

The first change was to the cover page.  The rules would be heard today at the meeting, expected to be 

posted the same day, and would become in full force and effect following a 7-day posting. If posted today, 

they would become effective September 5, 2020.   

 

The next substantial changes were to Chapter 4 which modified the Police Officer eligibility requirements.   

• Police were hoping to widen the net of applicants so the following changes were proposed in 

sections 4.5 and 4.6: 

1. Possess a Bachelor’s Degree with a minimum 2.0 Grade Point Average at an accredited college 

through the Department of Education; OR 

2. Have no degree, but have two years of experience as a Police Officer; OR 

3. Have no degree, but have three years of military experience with an honorable discharge; OR 

4. Possess 30 college credit hours with at least a 2.0 GPA from an accredited college combined 

with two years of experience in a civilian position with the Grand Prairie Police Department. 

Commissioner King asked Chief Scesney if the Police Officer requirement meant they could have 

been a Police Officer in a very small town and then come here where we are quite large and have 

more demands.  Chief Scesney confirmed and stated candidates would still have to complete all 

other sections of the background process and attend a lateral academy hosted by our Police 

Department to ensure they were ready to go in our department.  He confirmed this just widens the 

applicant pool and not every lateral officer would make it through the extensive background process 

or academy.  Only a fraction of those that apply are hired.   

• Ms. Norris indicated that the remainder of Chapter 4 beginning with 4.7 through 4.40 simply applied 

renumbering following the educational requirement change.   

 

The next set of changes impacted Chapter 6 of the rules.   

• Rule change 6.2 added language to allow on-site testing registration for a police entrance exam.  Ms. 

Norris indicated that this was vetted through Tiffany Bull, Assistant City Attorney and our outside 

employment attorney.  J.J. Wallis was present in the audience and asked to speak.  He questioned 

the Chief as to the goal of this section to allow on-site testing.  Chief Scesney responded that this 

simply allowed potentially strong candidates who became available to test on short notice, to be able 

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 3



to show up and test.  This widens the net of candidates for their hiring process.  J.J. thanked him for 

responding and seem satisfied with the answer.   

• Section 6.3 also was changed to include a “designee” to review police and fire applications for the 

entrance exams since typically our recruiters review those, not the Civil Service Director.   

• Section 6.4 a. and e. were modified to address DD214 provisions and allow the candidates who were 

testing to provide that form at the test site on the day of the test.  Ms. Norris clarified to the 

Commission that providing a DD214 prior or at the test site allows 5 points to be added to their raw 

score for purposes of the eligibility list so long as the DD214 was honorable.  Tiffany Bull clarified 

the DD214 was currently included in the rules, but this provision added the option to turn this in at 

the testing site. Ms. Norris also added that the candidate could still choose to turn in the DD214 at 

a later date, but points would not be retroactively applied to the entrance examination score.  

• Section 6.5 was modified to eliminate the requirement to submit documents in advance of the police 

officer entrance exam (similar to how Fire handles their document requirement for entrance exams), 

other than the DD214 if the candidates wants to receive the 5-point credit.  Ms. Norris indicated this 

will help candidates, especially now with COVID19 as they are at the mercy of the agencies from 

which they have requested documents to get them to them timely, such as birth certificates from the 

county, transcripts from schools, etc.  The rule change also clarified that during the background 

process, a variety of documents would be required to be submitted to verify eligibility and 

qualifications such as licenses, college transcripts, diplomas or degrees, birth certificates, etc.  

• Sections 6.6 through 6.14 were simply renumbering due to previous rule changes, and then  

• Section 6.15 allowed for a restroom break during the police or fire entrance examinations so long 

as a proctor was available to escort the candidate. Ms. Bull had confirmed with both Chiefs that this 

change was reasonable. The rule clarified any electronic device could not be taken with them to the 

restroom.  Ms. Norris stated to the Commission there had been an issue recently at the Police exam 

and this was a needed change to mirror how we handle promotional examinations regarding 

restrooms.  Chief Scesney confirmed.  Commissioner King questioned if we really had to escort 

people and if we could not trust them to go on their own.  Chief Scesney stated you would hope they 

could be trusted, but this just adds a level of testing security.    

• Section 6.16 through 6.31 were simply renumbering of the remaining items in Chapter 6. 

 

The final change to the rules was to the order on the last page that updates the Commission considering and 

adopting the changes noted.  This was modified to indicate all changes were heard at this meeting on August 

28, 2020.  With this final change noted, Ms. Norris stated no other items were before the Commission and 

that completed all rule changes.  The Commission had no other comments or questions regarding the rules.  

Reg Crump made a motion to approve the new rules as presented; Jerry King seconded the motion.  The 

motion passed unanimously.   

 

Ms. Norris stated there was no need for an Executive Session.  Commissioner Crump moved to adjourn the 

meeting and Commissioner King seconded.  The meeting adjourned at 8:55 a.m.   

 

 

_________________________________   ______________________________ 

Commissioner       Commissioner 

 

 

_________________________________   ______________________________ 

Commissioner       Civil Service Director 

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 4



ELIGIBILITY LIST FIRE CAPTAIN

PRELIMINARY
JANUARY 12, 2021

RANK NAME RAW SR. FINAL TIE TIE TIE 

  SCORE POINTS SCORE BREAKER BREAKER BREAKER

Raw Score Ctf Level date in Rank

1 Singleton, Randal 99 10 109

2 Adcock, Robert 97 10 107

3 Tadlock, Jared 95 10 105

4 Cunningham, Chad 94 10 104

5 Elizarraras, Adan 92 10 102   

6 Eastham, Philipp 91 10 101

7 Blaylock, Mark 89 10 99    

8 Estrada, Jesus 88 10 98   

9 Mojica, Jose 87 10 97

10 Ocampo, Edgar 86 10 96

11 Baker, Kevin 85 10 95   

12 Insco, Philip 83 10 93   

13 Jones, Brandon 76 10 86

14 Simpson, Jason 73 10 83

15 Norris, Clayton 71 10 81

The following candidates did not pass the test:

Blake, John 68
Johnson, Todd 68

Approved by the Grand Prairie Civil Service Commission this  day of 

__________________________________ _________________________________

Commissioner             Civil Service Director

__________________________________ _________________________________

Chairman, Civil Service Commission                          Commissioner

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 5



BC Test Question Appealed 
 
89. The NFPA Risk Management Plan includes the below five “cycles.” Identify the 3rd cycle. (IFSTA 
Occupational Safety, Health and Wellness, 4th Ed). 
1. Identification 
2. Evaluation 
3. ____________ 
4. Control Techniques 
5.  Monitoring 
 

A. Identify Workforce Gaps 
B. Assess Resources 

C. Priorities for Action 
D. Environmental Scan 

 
Correct Answer: C – IFSTA Occupational Safety, Health and Wellness, 4th Edition, Chapter 11, Page 371 

Candidate Answer Summary: A - 1,  B - 3,  C - 5,  D - 0  
 
 
Appellants: 

Exam EE Question # 

Battalion Chief Grider, Wendell 89 

Battalion Chief Spivey, Donald 89 

Battalion Chief Williams, Michael 89 
 

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 6



 
Ure Consulting Group, LLC 

15101 Falcon Drive, Austin, Texas 78734 
 www.UreConsultingGroup.com 
 
 

 
 
 
 
January 25, 2021 
 
 
Tasha Velasco 
Human Resources Manager 
City of Grand Prairie 
318 W Main Street 
Grand Prairie, TX 75050 
 
Dear Mrs. Velasco, 
 
Having received your request, the following is our response to the appealed question from the 
Grand Prairie Fire Department Battalion Chief Promotional Examination on January 12, 2021: 
 
Battalion Chief Exam 
Question 89 
Appellant:  Grider, Spivey, Williams 
 
(IFSTA Occupational Safety, Health, and Wellness, 4th Ed.)  The NFPA Risk Management Plan 
includes the below five “cycles.”  Identify the 3rd cycle.   
 
1. Identification 
2. Evaluation 
3. __________ 
4. Control Techniques 
5. Monitoring 
 
 
a.  Identify Workforce Gaps   c. Priorities for Action  
 
b. Assess Resources    d. Environmental Scan 
 

Answer Key:  C 

Answer Source:  IFSTA Occupational Safety, Health, and Wellness, 4th Edition, Chapter 11, 

Page 371. 

Appellants:  The question is worded incorrectly to the book.  It changes the thought process and 

possible answer to the question.  The question asks for one of the below five “cycles.”  It changes 

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 7



 
Ure Consulting Group, LLC 

15101 Falcon Drive, Austin, Texas 78734 
 www.UreConsultingGroup.com 
 
 

your thinking to be for possible different planning processes instead of just looking for a step.  The 

book in relation states “The Risk Management plan cycles through five “steps” outline in NFPA 

1500.  If the question would have asked for steps instead of the five “cycles” it would have led you 

to pick a step instead of possibly a different program.   

Consultant Opinion:  The appellant is correct in that the book, regarding the Risk Management 

Process, it refers to these five items as “steps” (Page 371).  It also refers to these five items as 

“elements” (Page 370).  We agree that the question could have been improved by using the word 

“steps” rather than “cycles”; however, the Risk Management Process (Page 371) clearly has five 

items in rank order, making answer C the only pliable answer.  The consultant disagrees that by 

using the word “cycle,” the context of the question is altered, as the question lists five (5) specific 

numbered items that are noticeably in rank order. 

Consultant Recommendation:  No action necessary.  The question is valid and correct. 
 

Respectfully, 

 

Bruce Ure 
Ure Consulting Group 

 

 

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 8



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 9



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 10



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 11



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 12



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 13



GPFD Battalion Chief Promotional Exam, Question 89 

 In response to the current appeal for Question 89 on the Grand Prairie Fire Department 

Battalion Chief Promotional Exam, I would like to submit a letter to support the validity of the 

question and that it should stand.  The 5 separate components of the Risk Management Process 

as described in Occupational Safety, Health, and Wellness were described as “Identify, 

Evaluation, Priorities for Action, Control Techniques, and Monitoring”, just as they were 

presented in question 89. The components first introduced on page 21 “NFPA 1500 includes the 

following risk assessment components: Identification, Evaluation, Prioritization, Control 

Techniques implementation, and Management monitoring”. Additionally, the 5 steps were again 

listed and prioritized on page 370, “NFPA 1500 4.2.3, contains the five elements of a risk 

analysis: identification, evaluation, prioritization, control and monitoring”. The elements were 

listed in the book, in the exact order as requested by the exam question. Furthermore, the specific 

question is clearly drawn from Figure 11.7 which states the “the risk management plan cycles 

through five steps outlined in NFPA 1500.”   The 3rd step in the process is “Priorities for Action” 

and the figure depicts a cyclic process.  The term ‘cycles’ is used synonymously with the other 

terms in the book such as ‘elements’ and ‘components’ and does not significantly alter the 

meaning of the question. Utilizing critical thinking with the ability to recall the steps from the 

reading and the clearly depicted Figure 11.7 on page 371 should allow any applicant to decipher 

the correct answer and should therefore stand.  

                                                                                                    Captain Jeremy Ashcraft  

  

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 14



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 15



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 16



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 17



ELIGIBILITY LIST FIRE BATTALION CHIEF

PRELIMINARY
JANUARY 12, 2021

RANK NAME RAW SR. FINAL TIE TIE TIE TIE

  SCORE POINTS SCORE BREAKER BREAKER BREAKER BREAKER

Raw Score Ctf Level date in Rank
Date of 

Certification

1 Ashcraft, Jeremy 98 10 108

2 Grider, Wendell 97 10 107 Master

3 Spivey, Donald 97 10 107 Advance 4/30/2016 1/6/2014

4 Williams, Michael 97 10 107 Advance 4/30/2016 6/25/2014

5 Yates, James 94 10 104

6 Stevenson, John 93 10 103

7 Sullivan, Michael 92 10 102

8 Covington, Ron 90 10 100

9 Purdom, James 88 10 98

The following candidates did not pass the test:   N/A

Approved by the Grand Prairie Civil Service Commission this day of , 2021.

__________________________________ _________________________________

Chairman, Civil Service Commission                          Commissioner

__________________________________ _________________________________

Commissioner             Civil Service Director

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 18



Fire Lieutenant Test Question Appealed 

55. A substance with a specific weight of 1.87 is which of the following? (IFSTA Fire Inspection & Code 
Enforcement, 8th Ed.) 
 

A. Soluble with water 

B. Heavier than water 
C. The same weight as water 
D. Lighter than water 

 

Correct Answer: B – IFSTA Fire Inspection & Code Enforcement, 8th Ed., Chapter 3, Page 90 

Candidate Answer Summary: A - 1, B - 13, C - 0, D - 0  
 

Appellants: 

Exam EE Question # 

Lieutenant Gohlke, Preston 55 
 

Vendor Response: 

 
Lieutenant Exam  
Question 55  
 
Appellant: Gohlke  
(IFSTA Fire Inspection & Code Enforcement, 8th Ed.) A substance with a specific weight of 1.87 is 
which of the following?  

 
a. Soluble with water    c. The same weight as water  
 
b. Heavier than water    d. Lighter than water  

 
Answer Key: B  
 
Answer Source: IFSTA Fire Inspection & Code Enforcement, 8th Ed., Chapter 3, Page 90  
 
Appellant: This question is flawed and must be eliminated because there is no correct answer. 
As noted above the term Specific Weight is not listed, defined or mentioned anywhere within 
the approved source Fire Inspector and Code Enforcement 8th Edition. The term Specific Weight 
however an actual scientific term as referenced above outside source materials. One of two 
possibilities occurred during the creation of this question, resulting in this error. First, the 
question created utilizing the term “specific weight” from an outside source not approved by 
the commission. Second, a typographical error occurred during the creation of the question 
resulting in the correct term “Specific Gravity” to be altered by replacing the second word of the 
term “Gravity” with a random word mentioned in the definition itself “weight.” Therefore, 

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 19



because this question presented a term not defined or listed within the approved sources as 
listed by the commission, this question should be eliminated from the exam.  
 
Consultant Opinion: Disagree with the appellant. Questions are not required to be “word for 
word” from the reading sources. On page 90 of the IFSTA Fire Inspection & Code Enforcement 
(8th Edition), it states, “Specific Gravity – Mass (weight) of a substance compared to the mass of 
an equal volume of water at a given temperature. A specific gravity less than 1 indicates a 
substance greater than water; a specific gravity greater than 1 indicates a substance heavier 
than water.” The question merely asks to compare a “substance with a specific weight of 1.87” 
to water would it be soluble, heavier, lighter or the same weight as water. The terms gravity and 
weight are interchangeable in this situation.  
 

Consultant Recommendation: No action necessary. The question is valid and correct.  

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 20



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 21



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 22



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 23



Fire Lieutenant Test Question Appealed 

78.  Gas cooling is not a fire extinguishment method but is a way of reducing heat release from the hot 
gas layer. This technique is effective when faced with which of the following types of fires? (Structural 
Fire Fighting: Initial Response Strategy and Tactics, 2nd Edition) 
 

A. Combustible fire 
B. Potential flashover fire 

C. Shielded fire 
D. Transitional fire 

 
Correct Answer: C – Structural Fire Fighting: Initial Response Strategy and Tactics, 2nd Edition, Chapter 
6, Page 242 
 

Candidate Answer Summary- A - 0, B - 3, C - 11, D - 0  
 
Appellants: 

Exam EE Question # 

Lieutenant Gohlke, Preston 78 

 

Vendor Response: 

Lieutenant Exam  
Question 78  
 
Appellant: Gohlke  
(Structural Fire Fighting: Initial Response Strategy and Tactics, 2nd Edition) Gas cooling is not a 
fire extinguishment method but is a way of reducing heat release from the hot gas layer. This 
technique is effective when faced with which of the following types of fires?  

 
a. Combustible fire    c. Shielded fire  
 
b. Potential flashover fire   d. Transitional fire  

 
Answer Key: C  
 
Answer Source: Structural Fire Fighting: Initial Response Strategy and Tactics, 2nd Edition, 
Chapter 6, Page 242  
 
Appellant: The question is flawed and must be eliminated because there is no correct answer. 
“Types of Fire” is not a concept or defined in the approved source materials. The question is 
unanswerable due to the addition and inclusion of the test makers own wording, language and 
writing style. The core and focus of the question was redirected by the addition of the modifier 
“types of fire.” “Types of Fire” cannot be found within the approved sources. This fact means 
that no answer was a good answer. You cannot assert a good answer based on an invalid 
question. Therefore, because this question presented the concept of “types of fire” as imagined 

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 24



by the test maker and the sources containing no such theory, principle or description, this 
question must be eliminated from the exam.  
 
Consultant Opinion: Disagree with appellant. Page 242 of the text states, “Gas cooling is not a 
fire extinguishment method but is a way of reducing heat release from the hot gas layer. This 
technique is effective when faced with a shielded fire.” The appellant’s position of focusing on 
the phrase “types of fire” is not valid. Answers A, B, C, and D are different, or “types of fires.” 
The appellant’s position that to reword the question to “This technique is effective when faced 
with which of the following” would make it valid is an incorrect assumption.  
 
Consultant Recommendation: No action necessary. The question is valid and correct.  

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 25



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 26



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 27



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 28



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 29



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 30



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 31



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 32



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 33



Fire Lieutenant Test Question Appealed 

 
96. Both criterion-referenced and norm-referenced tests can be divided into more specific 
classifications, based on t he reason for testing and the way the test is adminisyered. The purpose 
classification clarifies the reasons a test is given and the point at which it is given during 
instruction.  There are three test types that fall under the “purpose classification.” These test types 
include all of the following EXCEPT: (Fire and Emergency Services Instructor, 9th Edition) 
 

A. Performance tests 
B. Summative tests 
C. Cognitive tests 
D. Prescriptive tests 

 
Correct Answer: A – IFSTA Fire and Emergency Services Instructor, 9th Edition, Chapter 9, Page 187 & 
189  
 

Candidate Answer Summary: A - 2, B - 1, C - 11, D - 0  
 

Appellants: 

Exam EE Question # 

Lieutenant Gohlke, Preston 96 

Lieutenant Hill, Chad 96 

Lieutenant Morris, Benjamin 96 

Lieutenant Ostler, Brandon 96 

Lieutenant Rodgers, Chris 96 

 

Vendor Response: 

Lieutenant Exam  
Question 96  
 
Appellant: Golke, Hill, Morris, Ostler, Rogers  
(Fire and Emergency Services Instructor, 9th Edition) Both criterion-referenced and norm-
referenced tests can be divided into more specific classifications, based on the reason for testing 
and the way the test is administered. The purpose classification clarifies the reasons a test is 
given and the point at which it is given during instruction. There are three test types that fall 
under the “purpose classification.” These test types include all of the following EXCEPT:  

 
a. Performance tests    c. Cognitive tests  
 
b. Summative tests    d. Prescriptive tests  

 
Answer Key: A  

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 34



 
Answer Source: IFSTA Fire and Emergency Services Instructor, 9th Edition, Chapter 9, Page 187 
& 189  
 
Appellants: Another answer is also correct, in addition, to the keyed answer. Both answers 
should be allowed for credit. My answer is C. Page 187 Test Classifications – Purpose 
Classification test types include Prescriptive, Formative, and Summative tests. Neither 
Performance tests nor Cognitive tests fall under the Purpose Classification. Therefore, both 
answers (a. Performance tests and c. Cognitive tests) are equally correct. Performance tests fall 
under Administration classification and Cognitive tests are neither Purpose nor Administration 
classifications. The answer choices A & C should both be accepted as correct.  
 
Consultant Opinion: The appellants are correct. The correct answers should be prescriptive 
formative, or summative. Both answers A and C are correct.  
 
Consultant Recommendation: Both answers A and C is the correct response, as neither are “test 
classifications.” 
 

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 35



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 36



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 37



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 38



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 39



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 40



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 41



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 42



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 43



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 44



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 45



ELIGIBILITY LIST LIEUTENANT

PRELIMINARY
JANUARY 14, 2021

RANK NAME RAW SR. FINAL TIE TIE TIE 

  SCORE POINTS SCORE BREAKER BREAKER BREAKER

Raw Score Ctf Level date in Rank

1 Morris, Benjamin 97 10 107

2 Burns, Jack 95 10 105

3 Ostler, Brandon 92 10 102 Master

4 Wakeland, Ryan 92 10 102 Advance

5 Hill, Chad 91 10 101 Advance 10/29/2016

6 Gohlke, Preston 91 10 101 Advance 10/7/2017

7 Brock, Andrew 92 8 100 92

8 Maxwell, Chance 90 10 100 90

9 Rodgers, Christopher 87 10 97 Advance

10 Stafford, Brandon 87 10 97 Intermediate

11 Snow, Justin 86 9 95 86

12 Conaway, Jackson 85 10 95 85

13 Edington, Curt 81 10 91

14 Cheney, Tim 80 10 90

The following candidates did not pass the test:   N/A

Approved by the Grand Prairie Civil Service Commission this  day of 

__________________________________ _________________________________

Chairman, Civil Service Commission                          Commissioner

__________________________________ _________________________________

Commissioner             Civil Service Director

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 46



Fire Driver Test Question Appealed 

9. The hairstyle of all members shall be neat in appearance and consistent with a professional appearance. 
Any question of professional appearance regarding style, length, color, or cut will be referred to the Fire 
Chief and he/she will make a final determination.  Woman’s hair length shall not be longer than 
__________ when standing in a normal position. (Grand Prairie Fire Department Policy Manual) 
 

A. One inches past the top of the uniform shirt collar 
B. Four inches at the longest point 
C. Two inches past the top of the uniform shirt collar 

D. None of the above are correct 
 
Correct Answer: D – Reference Grand Prairie Fire Department Policy Manual, 1010.3.2 Personal 

Appearance Standards - Hair 

 

Candidate Answer Summary: A - 6, B - 0, C - 8, D - 52  
 

Appellants: 

Exam EE Question # 

Driver Lytle, Jacob 9 

 

Vendor Response: 

Driver Exam 
Question 9  
Appellant: Lytle 

 
(Grand Prairie Fire Department Policy Manual) The hairstyle of all members shall be neat in appearance 
and consistent with a professional appearance. Any question of professional appearance regarding style, 
length, color, or cut will be referred to the Fire Chief and he/she will make a final determination. Woman’s 
hair length shall not be longer than                                                       when standing in a normal position.  

 
a. one inch past the top of the uniform shirt 

collar 

 
c. two inches past the top of the uniform shirt 

collar 

b. four inches at the longest point d. None of the above are correct. 
 
Answer Key: D 
Answer Source: Grand Prairie Fire Department Policy Manual, 1010.3.2 Personal Appearance Standards - 

Hair 

Appellant: The question is faulty because there is no correct answer among the choices. The question 

should be eliminated. The question “Woman’s hair length shall not be longer than 

               when standing in a normal position.” There is no specific statement in the policy that states that 

women do not have to abide by the answer choice A “one inch past the top of the uniform shirt collar.” 

Although the policy uses the word “men’s” instead of women’s, Policy 1010.3 states “The following 

appearance standards shall apply to all members ….” The last sentence of Policy 1010.3.2 does state 

“Women's hair length shall be managed in a neat appearance and 

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 47



able to be completely covered by a protective hood and shall not interfere with the donning of a SCBA, 

facemask, or helmet.” 

I believe this allows an interpretation of the policy to be that a member’s hair length must be kept above 
the 1-inch rule whether that be by hair tie, cap, beanie, or other means necessary for compliance. This 
would also be the basis for Policy 1010.3.8 – “Members should be mindful of wearing jewelry that can 
become snagged or caught during performance of fire suppression duties.” Therefore, with the only two 
credible choices being (A) (mentioned earlier) and (D) None of the above are correct, the only viable 
options are either accept answer choice (A) is the only correct answer or eliminate the question entirely 
due to not having sufficient information in the policy stating otherwise. But with the question being 
created outside of the GPFD Policy Manual, the question should be eliminated. 
 
Consultant Opinion: Disagree with the appellant. The Grand Prairie Fire Department Policy 1010.3.2 

states, “Women’s hair shall be managed in a neat appearance and able to be completely covered by a 

protective hood and shall not interfere with the donning of a SCBA, mask or helmet. The GPFD policy 

fails to address any specific length, as it only addresses that the hair length must be able to be covered 

by a protective hood and not interfere with the donning of a SCBA, mask or helmet. The policy is specific, 

literal and to “interpret” the meaning could be a risky practice. 

 
Consultant Recommendation: No action necessary. The question is valid and correct. 
 

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 48



Policy

1010
Grand Prairie Fire Department

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Grand Prairie Fire Department

Personal Appearance Standards - 1

Personal Appearance Standards
1010.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
In order to project uniformity and neutrality toward the public and other members of the
Department, members shall maintain their personal hygiene and appearance to project a
professional image appropriate for this department and for their assignment.

The procedures contained herein are intended to promote uniformity of the members of
the Department by addressing specific grooming items. However, nothing herein shall limit
the department’s ability to address any other grooming or personal appearance deemed improper
for members of the Department.

1010.2   POLICY
It is the policy of the Grand Prairie Fire Department that all members meet required personal
hygiene and grooming standards while on-duty or conducting official business.

1010.3   GROOMING STANDARDS
The following appearance standards shall apply to all members except those whose current
assignment would deem them not appropriate or where the Fire Chief or the authorized designee
has granted an exception.

1010.3.1   PERSONAL HYGIENE
All members must maintain proper personal hygiene. Examples of improper personal hygiene
include, but are not limited to, dirty fingernails, bad breath, body odor and dirty or unkempt hair.
Any member who has a condition due to a protected category (e.g., race, physical disability) which
affects any aspect of personal hygiene covered by this policy may qualify for an accommodation
and should report any need for an accommodation to a supervisor or the Department of Human
Resources.

1010.3.2   HAIR
The hairstyle of all members shall be neat in appearance and consistent with a professional
appearance. Any question of professional appearance regarding style, length, color, or cut will be
referred to the Fire Chief and he/she will make a final determination. Men's hair length shall not
be longer than one inch past the top of the uniform shirt collar when standing in a normal position.
Women's hair length shall be managed in a neat appearance and able to be completely covered
by a protective hood and shall not interfere with the donning of a SCBA, facemask, or helmet.

1010.3.3   MUSTACHES AND SIDEBURNS
Mustaches and Sideburns shall not interfere with the sealing of the SCBA facemask.

1010.3.4   BEARDS AND GOATEES
Beards, goatees or any hair on the chin is prohibited.

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 49



Grand Prairie Fire Department
Policy Manual

Personal Appearance Standards

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Grand Prairie Fire Department

Personal Appearance Standards - 2

1010.3.5   FACIAL HAIR
Facial hair other than sideburns, mustaches, soul patches and eyebrows shall not be worn, unless
authorized by the Fire Chief or the authorized designee.

1010.3.6   COSMETICS
Members are permitted to wear cosmetics of conservative color and amount.

1010.3.7   FINGERNAILS
Fingernails extending beyond the tip of the finger can pose a safety hazard to members working in
the field. For this reason, fingernails shall be trimmed so that no point of the nail extends beyond
the tip of the finger.

1010.3.8   JEWELRY AND ACCESSORIES
No jewelry or personal ornaments shall be worn by members on-duty on any part of the uniform
or equipment, except those authorized within this manual. Members should be mindful of wearing
jewelry that can become snagged or caught during performance of fire suppression duties.

• Necklaces or jewelry worn around the neck shall not be visible above the shirt collar.

• It is recommended that members refrain from wearing rings while assigned to
suppression.

1010.4   TATTOOS, BODY ART, OR BRANDS
Members are prohibited from having tattoos, body art, or brands on any part of their hands, neck,
face, head, lips, eyes, mouth and ears. Tattoos, body art, or brands are allowed and at the sole
discretion of the Fire Chief to be visible while wearing an approved uniform on the arms and legs
while on duty. The Fire Chief will judge the appropriateness of the tattoo based on factors to
include but not limited to extremist, indecent, sexist, racist, or other negative factors that could
portray a negative public image and create a conflict with our impeccable image and violate our
public trust. Members who request to have a visible tattoo, body art, or brand shall coordinate with
the Fire Chief to gain his/her approval. Once the tattoo, body art, or brand is approved or denied,
the Chain of Command will be notified. This process is mandatory for any new tattoo, body art or,
brand AND includes ANY change or addition to and already approved tattoo, body art, or brand.

Tattoos, body art, or brands already in existence at the time of this policy that does not gain the Fire
Chief approval OR any new tattoo, body art, or brand that does not gain the Fire Chief approval
shall have the following options:

(a) Wear a long-sleeve uniform shirt.

(b) Cover the tattoo, body art or, brand with a skin tone or neutral color sleeve or wrap.

(c) Have the tattoo, body art, or brand removed at the member's expense.

1010.5   BODY PIERCING OR ALTERATION
Except for a single stud pierced earring worn in the lobe of each ear, no body piercing shall be
visible while any member is on-duty or representing the Department in any official capacity.

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 50



Grand Prairie Fire Department
Policy Manual

Personal Appearance Standards

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Grand Prairie Fire Department

Personal Appearance Standards - 3

Alteration to any area of the body visible in any authorized uniform or attire that is a deviation from
normal anatomical features and which is not medically required is prohibited. Such body alteration
includes, but is not limited to:

(a) Tongue splitting or piercing.

(b) The complete or trans-dermal implantation of any material other than hair replacement.

(c) Abnormal shaping of the ears, eyes, nose or teeth.

(d) Branding or scarification.

(e) Outlandish or unnatural contact lens color or color variations that create a distraction
of the member's appearance.

(f) Dental jewelry or unnatural covers such as a "grill".

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 51



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 52



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 53



Fire Driver Test Question Appealed 

92. What is the pressure loss due to friction for a pumper that is supplying a 300‐foot of hoseline that is 

flowing 125 gpm? The hoseline is composed of 200 feet of 2 ½ inch hose to 100 feet of 1 ½ inch hose. 
(Pumping and Aerial Apparatus Driver/Operator Handbook, 3rd Edition) 
 

A. 21 psi 
B. 16 psi 
C. 18 psi 

D. 6 psi 
 

Correct Answer: D – Pumping and Aerial Apparatus Driver/Operator Handbook, 3rd Edition, Chapter 7, 

Page 225 

 

Candidate Answer Summary: A ‐ 30, B ‐ 5, C ‐ 11, D ‐ 20  
 
Appellants: 

Exam  EE  Question # 

Driver  Bates, Trent  92 

Driver  Brown, Benjamin  92 

Driver  Cross, Taylor  92 

Driver  Gregory, Brian  92 

Driver  Kasparek, Adam  92 

Driver  Kimball, Robert  92 

Driver  Lewey, Joshua  92 

Driver  Lytle, Jacob  92 

Driver  Mayo, Zachary  92 

Driver  Olalde, Alexander  92 

Driver  Smith, Lewis  92 

Driver  Stewart, Zachary  92 

Driver  Tedrow, Brady  92 

 

 Vendor Response: 

Driver Exam 
Question 92 
Appellants: Bates, Brown, Cross, Gregory, Kasparek, Kimball, Lewey, Lytle, Mayo, Olalde, Smith, 
Stewart, Tedrow 
 

(Pumping and Aerial Apparatus Driver/Operator Handbook, 3rd Edition) What is the pressure loss due 

to friction for a pumper that is supplying a 300‐foot of hoseline that is flowing 125 gpm? The hoseline is 

composed of 200 feet of 21/2 inch hose reduced to 100 feet of 11/2 inch hose. 

 



a. 21 psi       c. 18 psi  
 
b. 16 psi       d. 6 psi 

 Answer Key: D 

 

Answer Source: Pumping and Aerial Apparatus Driver/Operator Handbook, 3rd Edition, Chapter 7, Page 

225 

Appellants: The question is faulty because there is no correct answer among the choices. The question 

should be eliminated. The answer provided in the book is not listed as a correct answer. The second 

part of the equation  is found on Page 226.   Additionally, Appellant Stewart requests that due to the 

examination instructions of selecting the “closest” answer, he contends that that his answer (A) is the 

“closest,” and therefore, should be considered to be correct. 

Consultant Opinion: Agree with appellants that the question is defective. 

Consultant Recommendation: The question is defective. Recommend either giving credit for any answer 
or disqualify the question from the exam, resulting in a 99‐question examination.  Regarding Appellant 
Stewart’s position of getting credit for the “closest” answer, we disagree with his analysis. It is true that 
his response was the “closest;” however, due to the fact that the question is defective and there is no 
possible correct answer, a person merely selecting the “closest” answer in a defective question should 
not receive either positive or negative credit as the question should be disregarded. 
 



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 56



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 57



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 58



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 59



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 60



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 61



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 62



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 63



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 64



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 65



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 66



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 67



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 68



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 69



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 70



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 71



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 72



Fire Driver Test Question Appealed 

96.  A person appointed to a beginning position in the fire department must serve a probationary period 
of one year beginning on which of the following? (Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 143) 
 

A. From the interview date 

B. From the person’s date of employment as a fire fighter, or fire academy trainee 
C. From the entry level examination date 
D. None of the above are correct 

 
Correct Answer: B – Reference Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 143 (2020), 143.027 
 

Candidate Answer Summary- A - 0, B - 39, C - 0, D - 27  
 
Appellants: 

Exam EE Question # 

Driver Graham, Tommy 96 

Driver Trotter, Lawrence 96 

 

 Vendor Response: 

Driver Exam 
Question 96 
Appellant: Graham, Trotter 

(Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 143) A person appointed to a beginning position in the fire 
department must serve a probationary period of one year beginning on which of the following? 

 

 
Answer Key: B 
 
Answer Source: Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 143 (2020), 143.027 

Appellants: The keyed answer is not correct. Another answer is correct, and it should be allowed for 

credit instead of the keyed answer. My answer is D. So, in the very next sentence it says, “In a 

municipality with a population of less than 1.9 million, the commission by rule may extend the 

probationary period by not more than six months for every person who: (2) is required to attend a 

basic training academy for initial certification by the Texas Commission of Fire Protection or the Texas 

Commission on Law Enforcement.” With that 6 months added to the academy trainee, that is a total 

of 18 months. So, when you read all of the section of this law it states who it can be applied to. The 

City of Grand Prairie is less than 1.9 million, so you add this to the year. A certified firefighter is the 

only answer because our commission has extended this to a total of 18 months for a new hire that has 

to go to the training academy. 

a. From the interview date c. From the entry level examination date 

b. From the person’s date of employment as a 
fire fighter, or academy trainee 

d. None of the above are correct. 

 

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 73



Consultant Opinion: The appellant’s position is not correct. The question merely asks when the 

beginning of the probational period begins. Section 143.027 states: 

“a) A person appointed to a beginning position in the fire or police department must 

serve a probationary period of one year beginning on that person's date of employment 

as a fire fighter, police officer, or academy trainee. In a municipality with a population 

of less than 1.9 million, the commission by rule may extend the probationary period by 

not more than six months for a person who: 

Consultant Opinion: The question is taken directly from Chapter 143.027. The questions asks 

when the probationary period begins and not how long the probationary period is. 
 
Consultant Recommendation: No action necessary. The question is valid and correct. 

 

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 74



September 1, 2005.

Acts 2005, 79th Leg., Ch. 909 (H.B. 148), Sec. 1, eff.

September 1, 2005.

Acts 2007, 80th Leg., R.S., Ch. 921 (H.B. 3167), Sec. 11.001,

eff. September 1, 2007.

Acts 2013, 83rd Leg., R.S., Ch. 93 (S.B. 686), Sec. 2.50, eff.

May 18, 2013.

Sec.A143.028.AAELIGIBILITY FOR PROMOTION. (a) Except as

provided by Sections 143.013 and 143.102, a fire fighter is not

eligible for promotion unless the person has served in that fire

department in the next lower position or other positions specified

by the commission for at least two years at any time before the date

the promotional examination is held. A fire fighter is not eligible

for promotion to the rank of captain or its equivalent unless the

person has at least four years ’ actual service in that fire

department.

(b)AAExcept as provided by Sections 143.013 and 143.102, a

police officer is not eligible for promotion unless the person has

served in that police department in the next lower position or other

positions specified by the commission for at least two years

immediately before the date the promotional examination is held. A

police officer is not eligible for promotion to the rank of captain

or its equivalent unless the person has at least four years ’ actual

service in that police department.

(c)AAIf a person is recalled on active military duty for not

more than 60 months, the two-year service requirements prescribed

by Subsections (a) and (b) do not apply and the person is entitled

to have time spent on active military duty considered as duty in the

respective fire or police department.

Acts 1987, 70th Leg., ch. 149, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1, 1987.

Amended by:

Acts 2005, 79th Leg., Ch. 833 (S.B. 863), Sec. 2, eff. June

17, 2005.

Sec.A143.029.AAPROMOTIONAL EXAMINATION NOTICE. (a) Before

the 90th day before the date a promotional examination is held, the

25

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 75



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 76



CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 77



ELIGIBILITY LIST FIRE ENGINEER

PRELIMINARY
JANUARY 14, 2021

RANK NAME RAW SR. FINAL TIE TIE TIE TIE 

  SCORE POINTS SCORE BREAKER BREAKER BREAKER BREAKER

Raw Score Ctf Level date in Rank Date of Cert

1 Kimball, Robert 100 6 106

2 Mayo, Zachary 100 5 105 100

3 Tedrow, Brady 99 6 105 99

4 Olalde, Alexander 95 10 105 95 Advance 12/6/2010 12/20/2019

5 Graviett, Michael 95 10 105 95 Advance 12/6/2010 10/21/2020

6 Kasparek, Adam 95 9 104 95

7 Gregory, Brian 94 10 104 94

8 Lewey, Joshua 97 6 103 97

9 Stewart, Zachary 94 9 103 94

10 Brown, Benjamin 93 10 103 93

11 Cross, Taylor 98 4 102 98

12 Smith, Lewis 92 10 102 92 Advance 8/7/2000

13 Turner, Sean 92 10 102 92 Advance 12/6/2010

14 Trotter, Lawrence 91 10 101

15 Owens, Micah 95 5 100 95

16 Davis, Derek 92 8 100 92

17 Dudley, Daniel 91 9 100 91

18 Thomas, Alejandro 90 10 100 90

19 Lytle, Jacob 94 5 99 94

20 Storm, Ian 93 6 99 93 Master

21 Underhill, Jonathan 93 6 99 93 Intermediate

22 Glaze, Nicholas 92 7 99 92

23 Mauer, Nicholas 94 4 98 94

24 Mckennie, John 93 5 98 93

25 Flath, Brent 92 5 97 92

26 Howell, Keith 90 7 97 90 Advance

27 Bates, Trent 90 7 97 90 Intermediate

28 Bennett, Loren 87 10 97 87

29 Besselman, Charles 93 3 96 93

30 Pulice, Timothy 91 5 96 91

31 Curbo, Trevor 90 6 96 90

32 Allison, Michael 91 4 95 91

33 Seider, William 90 5 95 90

34 McCullough, Michael 85 10 95 85 Advance

35 Graham, Tommy 85 10 95 85 Intermediate

36 Grondin, Andrew 88 6 94 88

37 Hansbro, Boyd 84 10 94 84

38 Shoemaker, Justice 89 4 93 89

39 Winkle, Joe 88 5 93 88

40 Medcalf, Eric 83 10 93 83

41 Boatman, Matt 87 5 92 87 Intermediate 1/26/2015

42 Galindo, Ruben 87 5 92 87 Intermediate 4/6/2015

43 Powell, Michael 82 10 92 82 Advance 1/26/2004

44 Collings, Austin 82 10 92 82 Advance 10/1/2007

45 Skipper, Westmoreland 87 4 91 87 Intermediate

46 Roberts, Joshua 87 4 91 87 Basic

47 Essig, Jeffrey 81 10 91 81

48 Grey, Jeffrey 80 10 90

49 Schrader III, Edward 78 10 88 78 Intermediate

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 78



ELIGIBILITY LIST FIRE ENGINEER

PRELIMINARY
JANUARY 14, 2021

50 Nichols, Nathan 78 10 88 78 Basic

51 Benavidez, Michael 76 10 86

52 Thompson, Dustin 77 7 84

53 Mazac, Robert 71 10 81 71 Master

54 Case, Darwyn 71 10 81 71 Advance

55 Tapia, Gerardo 76 4 80 76

56 Cowan, Robert 70 10 80 70

57 Wade, Nolan 71 5 76

58 Simpson, John 71 3 74

The following candidates did not pass the test:

Hill, Kory 68

Irvan, Blake 67

Macdonald, Scott 66

Ivey, Hunter 64

Jennings, Craig 64

Miller, Bryan 62

Price, Cody 61

Laurie, Christopher 61

Approved by the Grand Prairie Civil Service Commission this  day of 

__________________________________

Chairman, Civil Service Commission

__________________________________

Commissioner

_________________________________

                         Commissioner

_________________________________

            Civil Service Director

CSC Agenda Packet 1-29-21, Page 79


	Civil Service Commission Meeting Agenda Packet 1-29-21.pdf
	Civil Service Commission Meeting Agenda Packet 1-29-21.pdf
	1 CS Agenda 1-29-21
	8-28-20 Minutes
	Captain.EligibilityList. verified raw and Preliminary
	BC Test Question Appealed - Summary
	BC Vendor Response - Appeals GP FD Battalion Chief Exam January 2021
	BC - Q 89 - Reference Material
	BC Appeal - Q 89 - Grider, W.
	BC Appeal - Q 89 - Spivey. D.
	BC Appeal - Q 89 - Williams, M.
	BC Opposition to appeal - Ashcraft Opposition to Appealed Q 89
	BC - Q 89 - Appellant Referenced Pages
	BC.EligibilityList. verified raw and preliminary
	Fire Lieutenant Appealed Questions-#55 Summary
	LT - Q 55 - Reference Page
	LT Appeal - Q 55 - Gohlke, P
	Fire Lieutenant Appealed Questions-#78 Summary
	LT Appeal - Q 78 - Gohlke, P
	LT - Q 78 - Appellant Referenced Pages
	LT - Q 78 - Reference Page
	Fire Lieutenant Appealed Questions-#96 Summary
	LT - Q 96 - Reference Page 1
	LT - Q 96 - Reference Page 2
	LT Appeal - Q 96 - Gohlke, P
	LT Appeal - Q 96 - Hill, C.
	LT Appeal - Q 96 - Morris, B.
	LT Appeal - Q 96 - Ostler, B.
	LT Appeal - Q 96 -  Rodgers, C.
	LT - Q 96 - Appellant Referenced Pages
	Lieutenant.EligibilityList. verified raw and Preliminary
	Fire Driver Appealed Question #9-Summary
	Driver - Q 9 - Reference Material
	Driver Appeal - Q 9 - Lytle, J
	Driver - Q 92 - Reference Material
	Driver Appeal - Q 92 - Bates, T
	Driver Appeal - Q 92 - Brown, B.
	Driver Appeal - Q 92 - Cross, T.
	Driver Appeal - Q 92 - Gregory, B.
	Driver Appeal - Q 92 - Kasparek, A.
	Driver Appeal - Q 92 - Kimball, R.
	Driver Appeal - Q 92 - Lewey, J.
	Driver Appeal - Q 92 - Mayo, Z.
	Driver Appeal - Q 92 - Lytle, J.
	Driver Appeal - Q 92 - Olalde, A.
	Driver Appeal - Q 92 - Smith, L.
	Driver Appeal - Q 92 - Stewart, Z.
	Driver Appeal - Q 92 - Tedrow, B.
	Driver - Q 92 - Appellant Referenced Page
	Fire Driver Appealed Question #96-Summary
	Driver - Q 96 - Reference Material
	Driver Appeal - Q 96 - Graham, T.
	Driver Appeal - Q 96 - Trotter, L.
	Driver.EligibilityList. verified raw and Preliminary

	Fire Driver Appealed Question #92-Summary.pdf

	Fire Driver Appealed Question #92-Summary.pdf



